CL2019-0002911
[ ] This SUBPOENA/SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM TO PERlSON UNDER FOREIGN SUBPOENA is being served by a private
process server who must provide proof of service in accordance with Va. Code § 8.01-325.

TO the person authorized to serve this process: Upon execution, the return of this process shall be made to the
Clerk of Court.

NAME: /\)G.LL\ /9) e;\'-\'OmU
appress: JNO Qo\umb\Q He\@hjrcs

.._..__._.............fb(.o.ola&.\u D New Yov\fk ~1A04

[ ] PERSONAL SERVICE ;‘2 J !

Being unable to make personal service, a copy was dehvered in the following manner:

[ ] Delivered to family member (not temporary scuoumer or guest) age 16 or older at usual place of abode of
party named above aifter giving information of; its purport. List name, age of recipient, and relation of
recipient fo party named above:

|

[ ] Posted on front door or such other door as appears to be the main entrance of usual place of abode, address
listed above. (Other authorized recipient not found.)

[ ] notfound .. , Sheriff

by b , Deputy Sheriff

DATE

JOHN T, FREY, CLERK

FAIRFAX COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT
4110 CHAIN BRIDGE ROAD
FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA 22030

FORM CC-1439 (MASTER, PAGE THREE QF THREE) 07409
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T { @ attend and give testimony at a deposition
%
'

FlLED

COMPIY ,
 SUBPOENA/SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM | | " (i, CL2019:0002911

TO PERSON UNDER FOREIGN SUBPOM W~
Commonwealth of Virginia VA CODE §§ 8.01-412,8—8, 01-412 15; Rule E’Q’ I: 3 |

st cony QAP Ry Gt Cous
4110 Chain Bridge Road, Fairfax, Virginia 22030 FIA’RF AX. va i

ADDRESS OF COURT .
John C. Depp, I Wil re: Amber Laura Heard

TO THE PERSON AUTHORIZED BY LAW TO SERVE THIS PROCESS:
You are commanded to summon

Paul Bettany
. NAME
140 Columbia Heights - |
'STREET ADDRESS
Brooklyn Néw; York 11201
' STATE P

TO THE PERSON SUMMONED: You are commanded to

produce the books, documents, records, elech'omcally stored information, and tangible thmgs designated and
described below

See Exh. A

Kaplan Hecker & Fink LLP, 350 Fifth Avenue, Sltjite 7110 " December 2, 2019 at 10:00 a.m.
a
LOCATION Newd 59!1., ) ‘N 1o 1% DATE AND TIME

and to permit inspection and copying by the re'qulestmg party or someone acting in his or her behalf of the
designated items in your possession, custody or control

at

I:' permit inspection of the premises

at the following location

LOCATION

on

DATE AND TIME

This subpoena is issued upon the request of the party named below
Amber Laura Heard

NM!DFkEQUEST.NGPARTY
c/o Ben Rottenborn, Woods Rogers, PLC, 10 8. Jeﬁ§r$on Street, Suite 1400

STREET ADDRESS

Roanoke Virginia 24011 {540) 983-7540

CITY STATE | ZIr TELEPHONE NUMBER

FORM CC-1439 (MASTER, PAGE ONE OF THREE} 07/0%



CL2019-0002911
\

The requesting party has submitted to this Clerk’s Ofﬁce the foreign subpoena, copy attached, the terms of which are -
incorporated herein, and the written statement requlred by Virginia Code § 8.01-412.10.

The names, addresses and telephone numbers of all counscl of record in the proceeding to which the subpoena relates
and of parties not represented by counsel are prowded [:I below'EI on attached list.

Navembec.1.d014

DATE ISS D

J. Benjamin Rottenborn

NAME OF ATTORNEY FOR REQUESTING PARTY

Woods Rogers PLC, 10 S. Jefferson St.

84796 . Virginia

BAR NUMBER

(540) 983-7540

LICENSING STATE

OFFICE ADDRESS TELEFHONE NUMBER OF ATTORNEY
Suite 1400, Roanoke, Virginia 24011 (540) 983-7711
OFFICE ADDRESS FACSIMILE NUMBER OF ATTORNEY
NAME BAR NUMBER LICENSING STATE
STREET ADDRESS TELEPHONE NUMBER
STREET ADDRESS FACSIMILE NUMBE
NAME BAR NUMBER LICENSING STATE
STREET ADDRESS TELEPHONE NUMBER
STREET ADDRESS e FACSIMILE NUMBER
NAME BAR NUMBER LICENSING STATE
STREET ADDRESS TELEPHONE NUMBER
STREET ADDRESS FACSIMILE NUMBER

RETURN OF SERVICE (see page three of this form)

FORM CC-1439 (MASTER, PAGE TWO OF THREE) 07/09




CompyTiHED

S .

VIRGINIA: 19 0y ~¢ Wit s,
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF FAIRFAX COU%R%E.WREUT REY
JOHN C. DEPP, Il : FAIRFAY, |5 OURT
Plaintiff, .
v. | | Civil Action No.: CL-2019-0002911
AMBER LAURA HEARD |

Defendant.

CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL

This is to certify that I caused a true ax!ld! accurate copy of the enclosed Subpoena Duces

!
Tecum and Subpoena Ad Testificandum Pursualnt to New York’s C.P.L.R. § 3119 and Virginia

Subpoena/Subpoena Duces Tecum to Person Under Foreign Subpoena to be sent via United

States Mail on the 5th day of November, 2019, to counsel of record.

1. Benjamin Rottenborn (VSB #84796)
Joshua R. Treece (VSB #79149)
WooDs ROGERS PLC

10 S. Jefferson Street, Suite 1400

P.O. Box 14125

Roanoke, Virginia 24011

(540) 983-7540
brottenborn@woodsrogers.com
jtreece@woodsrogers.com

Attorneys for Defendant Amber Laura Heard

1

1

I i
{2655445-1, 121024-00001-01} l |

crnjamin kotienborn




I certify that on this 5th day of November 201?
. . . |
class mail, postage prepaid, and by email, upon:

Benjamin G. Chew, Esq.
Elliot J. Weingarten, Esq.
Andrew C. Crawford, Esq.
BROWN RUDNICK LLP

601 Thirteenth Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20005
Telephone: (202) 536-1700
Facsimile; (202) 536-1701
bechew(@brownrudnick.com
eweingarten@brownrudnick.com
acrawford@brownrudnick.com

Camille M. Vasquez, Esq.
BRrROWN RUDNICK LLP

2211 Michelson Drive

Irvine, CA 92612

Telephone: (949) 752-7100
Facsimile: (949) 252-1514
cvasquez{@brownrudnick.com

oshua Treece

WooDs ROGERS PLC

10 8. Jefferson Street

Suite 1400

Roanoke, VA 24011
Telephone: (540) 983-7540
Facsimile: (540) 983-7711
brottenborn@woodsrogers.com
jtreece@woodsrogers.com

{2655445-1, 121024-00001-01}

bl

a copy.of the foregoing shall be served by first

Adam R. Waldman, Esq.

THE ENDEAVOR LAW FIRM, P.C.

1775 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W., Suite 350
Washington, DC 20006 h
awaldman@theendeavorgroup.com

: Robert Gilmore, Esq.

Kevin Attridge, Esq.

STEIN MITCHELL BEATO & MISSNER LLP
901 Fifteenth Street, N.-W.

Suite 700

" Washington, D.C. 20005

Telephone: (202) 601-1589
Facsimile: (202) 296-8312

. rgilmore(@steinmitchell.com

j e
H

kattridge@steinmitchell.com
Counsel for Plaintiff John C. Depp, II




John C. Depp, II v. Amber Laura Heard
Fairfax County Case No. CL-2019-0002911

All Coun

Benjamin G. Chew, Esq. (VSB 29113)
Elliot J. Weingarten

Andrew C. Crawford (VSB No. 89093)
BROWN RUDNICK LLP

601 Thirteenth Street, NW
Washington, DC 20005

(202) 536-1700

(202) 536-1701 — FAX
behew@brownrudnick.com

Camille M. Vasquez
BROWN RUDNICK LLP °
2211 Michelson Drive

Irvine, CA 92612

Tel. (549) 752-7100

Fax (949) 252-1514
cvasquez@brownrudnick.com

Adam R. Waldman, Esq.

THE ENDEAVOR LAW FIRM, P.C.

1775 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Suite 350
Washington, DC 20006

Robert Gilmore, Esq.

Kevin L. Attridge, Esq.

STEIN MITCHELL BEATO & MISSNER LLP
901 Fifteenth Street, NW, Suite 700
Washington, DC 20005

Tel. (202) 601-1602, or 1589

Fax (202) 296-8312
rgilmore@steinmitchell.com

Joshua R. Treece, Esq.

J. Benjamin Rottenborn, Esq.
WOODS ROGERS PLC

10 8. Jefferson Street, Suite 1400
Roanoke, VA 24011

T: 540.983.7730

F: 540.322.3885
jtreece@woodsrogers.com
brottenborn@woodsrogers.com

sel of Record

Counsel for John C. Depp, 1l

Counsel for John C. Depp, II

Counsel for John C. Depp, I

Counsel for John C. Depp, IT

Counsel for Amber Laura Heard



Timothy J. McEvoy, Esg. (VSB No. 33277)
Sean Patrick Roche, Esq. (VSB No. 71412)
CAMERON/McEVOY, PLLC

4100 Monument Corner Drive, Suite 420
Fairfax, Virginia 22030

703.460.9343 (Direct)

703.273.8898 (Office)

703.273.8897 (Fax)
tmcevoy@cameronmeevoy.com
sroche(@cameronmcevoy.com

Davida Brook, Esq. (SBN 275370)
SUSMAN GODFREY L.L.P.

1900 Avenue of the Stars, Suite 1400
Los Angeles, CA 90067

Tel. (310) 789-3105
dbrook@susmangodfrey.com

Roberta A. Kaplan, Esq.

John C. Quinn, Esq.

Julie E. Fink, Esq.

KAPLAN HECKER & FINK LLP
350 Fifth Avenue, Suite 7110
New York, New York 10118

T: 212.763.0883
tkaplan@kaplanhecker.com
jfink@kaplanhecker.com
jquinn@kaplanhecker.com

—_—y —

Counsel for Amber Laura Heard
/

Counsel for Amber Laura Heard

Counsel for Amber Laura Heard



EXHIBIT A

John C. Depp, II \'( Amber Laura Heard
Fairfax County Circuit Court: CL. 2019-0002911

DEFINITIONS
a. Action. The term “Action” means the above-captioned action.
b. Communication. The term “communication” means any oral or written exchange

of words, thoughts, or ideas to another persoﬁ, whether person-to-person, in a group, by phone,
]

text (SMS), letter, fax, e-mail, internet post or correspondence, social networking post or

correspondence or by any other processi, electric, electronic, or otherwise. All such
. i
Communications are included without re‘ga:rd to the storage or transmission medium
1 1
(electronically stored information and hard copies are included within this definition).
1

|| . .
c. Document. The term “document” is defined in its broadest terms currently

recognized. The term shall include, Withou;l limitations: any written or other compilation of

|
information (whether printed, handwritten, recorded, or encoded, produced, reproduced, or

reproducible by any other process), drafts (revlisjons or finals), original or preliminary notes, and
summaries of other documents, communications of any type (e-mail, text messages, blog posts,
social media posts or other similar communications or correspondence), computer tape,
computer files, and including all of their contf%nts and attached files. The term “document™ shall

also include but not be limited to: correspondence, memoranda, contractual documents,

]
|

specifications, drawings, photographs, imagesll, aperture cards, notices of revisions, test reports,
I, '

. . . . | .
inspection reports, evaluations, technical reports, schedules, agreements, reports, studies,

analyses, projections, forecasts, summaries, reqords of conversations or interviews, minutes or
r

records of conferences or meetings, manuals, handbooks, brochures, pamphlets, advertisements,



circulars, press releases, financial statements!

calendars, diaries, trip reports, etc. A draft of a

non-identical copy is a separate document within the meaning of this term.

‘

. Correspondence. The term

‘correspondence” means any document(s) and/or

communication(s) sent to or received from another entity and/or person.

c. Person. The term “person” is

partnership, legal entity, govermﬁental entity,
f. Concerning. The term “conces
evidencing, or constituting,
g Including. The term “includin

h.

I
ldc:eﬁned as any natural person, business, company, .

and/or association.
ming” includes relating to, referring to, describing,

o means including but not limited to.

And/or. The use of “and/or’] shall be interpreted in every imstance both

conjunctively and disjunctively in order to bring within the scope of these discovery requests any

information which might otherwise be constru

i, Defendant and/or Ms. Heard.

ed to be outside their scope.

The terms “Defendant” and/or “Ms. Heard™ refer

to Defendant Amber Laura Heard, including her agents, representatives, employees, assigns, and

all persons acting on her behalf.

3. Plaintiff and/or Mr. Depp.
Plaintiff John C. Depp, II, including his ag
persons acting on his behalf.

k.

this Action.

The terms “Plaintiff” and/or “Mr. Depp” refer to

el}té, representatives, employees, assigns, and all

Complaint. The term “Complaint” shall mean the Complaint filed by Plaintiff in

a, Relevant Date Range. A Rf!le!vant Date Range is any of the following date

ranges (inclusive of the first and

1. 08/01/2012 — 05/01/201

last day of each range):

3 |




il. 03/07/2013 — 03/21/2013

iti. 05/24/2014 — 07/31/2014

iv. 08/01/2014 — 09/07/2014!
-
B2 12/01/2014 - 12/31/2014

|

Vi. 01/20/2015 —02/14/2015
|

vii.  03/03/2015 — 04/21/2015

vili.  03/21/2015 - 04/11/2015

iX. 08/01/2015 — 09/15/2015
X. 11/25/2015 — 12/13/2015,

XI. 12/01/2015 —01/14/2016

xii.  04/01/2016 — 05/20/2016

xiii.  05/21/2016 - 06/21/2016

xiv.  07/01/2016 —08/01/2016

(11

b. Romantic Partners. The term! “Romantic Partners” shall mean any persons You

know to have been in an intimate relationship |with Mr. Depp.

c. You and/or Your. The terms i“’ilfou” and/or “Your” refer to the recipient of this

.
Subpoena, as well as all persons and entities over which said recipient has “control” as

understood by the Rules of this Court.

INSTRUCTIONS

1. Where information in Your pt:)s:session is requested, such request includes non-
| i
privileged information in the possession | of Your agent(s), employee(s), assign(s),

representative(s), and all others acting on You:r behalf.

|
E
|
|
|



2. Whenever appropriate in these Requests, the singular form of a word shall be

interpreted as its plural to whatever extent|is necessary to bring within the scope of these

Requests any information which might otherwise be construed to be outside their scope.

3, Unless otherwise indicated, ithese Requests refer to the time, place, and

! _
circumstances of the occurrences mentioned or complained of in the pleadings in this case.
!

4. All references to an entity inciude the entity and its agents, officers, employees,

representatives, subsidiaries, divisions, succeésérs, predecessors, assigns, parents, affiliates, and
| ,
unless privileged, its attorneys and accountants.

5. If You perceive any ambiguitie:s in a question, instruction, .deﬁnition, or other
aspect of this Subpoena, set forth the mattér'i cieemed ambiguous and the construction used in
answering. | .

6. If You assert a claim of privilleg|e as to any of Your responses to the Requests,
state the basis for the asserted privilege, specify the priviiege claimed, and include in Your
answer sufficient information to permit an informed ruling on the claim of privilege. If the claim

relates to a privileged document, state the date, person or persons who prepared or participated in

preparing the document, the name and address of any person to whom the document was shown

or sent, the general subject matter of the document, the present or last known location and

custodian of the original of the document, andI the basis for the claim of privilege with respect to
B
the document. If the claim of privilege relatesl to a communication, state the date(s), place(s) and

person(s) involved in the communication, the Isu;bject matter of the communication, and the basis
|

for the claim of privilege with respect to that c:ommunication. '



7. If You perceive any Request| to be overly broad, unduly burdensome, or

objectionable for any other reason, respond to the fullest extent possible and clearly note any

objection so as to permit an informed ruling on the objection.

8.  These Requests are continuing|in character so as to require You to promptly
|

_ , |
amend or supplement Your production of documents within a reasonable time if You obtain or

become aware of any further documents respdnsive to this Subpoena.
||

DOCUMENTS TIO BE PRODUCED

In response to this subpoena, YOU are fequired to produce the original or an exact copy

of the following: 1 |

£ ]

L All documents and communicaﬁiéns exchanged between You and Mr. Depp (or
any person or entity acting on his behalf) with=in| any Relevant Date Range. |
2. All documents and communications relating to Your statements made in the
following Twitter posts on or around May 28,|2016: |
i. “known Johnny Depp forjyears and through several relationships. He's the
sweetest, kindest, gentlest man that I've ever known. Just saying.”

ii. “All I’'m saying-Domestic violence is a serious allegation. Trial by twitter

is unhelpful. Let the facts/come out before rushing to judgment”

N

3. All documents and communications concerning any transactions, payments, gifts,

3

or transfers of value of any kind, whether in mohetary form or otherwise, made by Mr. Depp
||
{and/or any entity or person affiliated or associated with Mr. Depp or acting on his behalf) to or

for the benefit of You (ahd/or any entity or pell's?n affiliated or associated with You or acting on
[

Your behalf).

!
'
1
I '
'



4. All documents and communications concerning any use of drugs (whether legal
or illegal) and/or alcohol by Mr. Depp.

5. All documents and communications concerning any act or alleged act of physical

violence and/or abuse irivolving Ms. Heard (whether or not Ms. Heard was violent and/or
abusive).

6. All documents and communiczﬂif;ms exchanged between You and Mr. Depp (or
any person or entity acting on his behalf) that Ireilate to or refer to any of Mr. Depp’s Romantic
Partners (including Ms. Heard) and which concern any act of physical violence and/or abuse
involving Mr.-Depp (whether or not Mr. Depp himself was violent and/or abusive).

7. All documents and communicqtiions concerning any act or alleged act of physical
violence and/or abuse involving Mr. Depp ancll ziiny person (whether or not Mr. Depp himself was
violent and/or abusive).

8. All documents and communica_tigns concerning any act or alleged act of Mr.
Depp that resulted m damage to property. | !

* & *




SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK

KINGS COUNTY

John C. Depp, 11,

Plaintiff, |

V.
Amber Laura Heard,

Defendant,

TO: Paul Bettany
~ 140 Columbia Heights,
Brooklyn, New York 11201

YOU ARE HEREBY COMMANDED

Practice Law and Rules (“CPLR”), all business

available for copying, on or before December

LLP, 350 Fifth Avenue, Suite 7110, New York,

ORIGINATING STATE:
THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

ORIGINATING COURT:

CIRCUIT COURT OF FAIRFAX COUNTY

ORIGINATING CASE NUMBER
Case No. CL2019-02911

SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM AND

SUBPOENA AD TESTIFICANDUM
PURSUANT TO CPLR 3119

, pursuant to Section 3119 of the New York Civil
ind excuses being laid aside, to produce, or make
2, 2019, at the offices of Kaplan Hecker & Fink

New York 10118, or by email to John C. Quinn,

Esq. (jquinn@kaplanhecker.com), true and |complete copies of all documents requested in

. |
Exhibit A hereto, that are in your possession, custody or control, which documents are material -

and relevant to the resolution of the issues in the above-captioned matter, which is now pending

in the Circuit Court of the Commonwealth of Virginia, Fairfax County. If you wish to make
|

your production in person, please call John Quifm at (212) 763-0883 at least 72 hours in advance

to make arrangements.




The discovery herein sought and required is in connection with the claims and défenses in

the above-captioned action. A copy of the |Complaint in this action is attached hereto as

Exhibit B. B
‘ K
YOU ARE FURTHER COMMAND]%D to appear at the time, date and place set forth

[
below to testify at a deposition to be taken in this civil action.

The deposition shall commence on Delcember 2, 2019 at 10:00 a.m. at the offices of

| .
Kaplan Hecker & Fink LLP, 350 Fifth Avenpe:, Suite 7110, New York, New York 10118 or at

L
such other location or date as may be agreed on by the parties or ordered by the Court, and shall

continue from day to day until completed. ”l}he deposition shall be conducted before a person

authorized by law to administer oaths and maiy Ibe recorded by stenographic, audio, video and/or

real-time transcription means. ; ,
1
I

FAILURE TO COMPLY with this SIIJBPOENA is punishable as a contempt of Court

and shall make you liable to the person on whase behalf this subpoena was issued for a penalty
not to exceed one hundred fifty dollars and all damages sustained by reason of your failure to

comply.
|

ol
|
COUNSEL OF RliE(IZORD FOR ALL PARTIES
. |
i
The contact information for the attorne’y% of record in this action is as follows:
I
|

Counsel for John C. Depp, IT -
Elliot J. Weingarten

Andrew C. Crawford (VSB No. 89093)
BROWN RUDNICK LLP

601 Thirteenth Street, NW
Washington, DC 20005

(202) 536-1700

(202) 536-1701 — FAX |
bchew@brownrudnick.com

|
Benjamin G. Chew, Esq. (VSB 29113) I
|
]




Camille M. Vasquez
BROWN RUDNICK LLP
2211 Michelson Drive

Irvine, CA 92612

Tel. (949) 752-7100

Fax (949) 252-1514
cvasquez@brownrudnick.com

Adam R. Waldman, Esq.

THE ENDEAVOR LAW FIRM, P.C.

1775 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Suite 350
Washington, DC 20006 '

Robert Gilmore, Esq.
Kevin L. Attridge, Esq.

|
|
STEIN MITCHELL BEATO & MISSNER LLP

901 Fifteenth Street, NW, Suite 700
Washington, DC 20005

Tel. (202) 601-1602, or 1589

Fax (202) 296-8312
rgilmore@steinmitchell.com

J. Benjamin Rottenborn, Esq. (VSB #84796)
Joshua R. Treece, Esq. (VSB # 79149)
WOODS ROGERS PLC

10 S. Jefferson Street, Suite 1400

Roanoke, VA 24011

T: 540.983.7730

F: 540.322.3885
brottenborn@woodsrogers.com
Jtreece@woodsrogers.com

Counsel for John C. Depp, 11

Counsel for John C. Depp, Il

Counsel for John C. Depp, IT

Counsel for Amber Laura Heard



Timothy J. McEvoy, Esq. (VSB No. 33277)
Sean Patrick Roche, Esq. (VSB No. 71412)
CAMERON/McEVOY, PLLC

4100 Monument Corner Drive, Suite 420
Fairfax, Virginia 22030

703.460.9343 (Direct)

703.273.8898 (Office)

703.273.8897 (Fax)
tmecevoy@cameronmcevoy.com
sroche@cameronmecevoy.com

Eric M. George, Esq. (SBN 166403)
Richard A. Schwartz (SBN 267469)
BROWNE GEORGE ROSS LLP
2121 Avenue of the Stars, Suite 2800
Los Angeles, CA 90067

Tel. (310) 274-7100

Fax. (310) 275-5697
egeorge@bgrfirm.com
rschwartz@bgrfirm.com

Roberta A, Kaplan, Esq.

Julie E. Fink, Esq.

John C. Quinn, Esq.

KAPLAN HECKER & FINK LLP
350 Fifth Avenue, Suite 7110

New York, New York 10118
T:212.763.0883
rkaplan@kaplanhecker.com
jfink@kaplanhecker.com
jquinn@kaplanhecker.com

Dated: November 3, 2019
New York, New York

Counsel for Amber Laura Heard

Counsel for Amber Laura Heard

Counsel for Amber Laura Heard

KAPLAN HECKER & FINK LLP

By:

John C. Quinn

350 Fifth Avenue, Suite 7110
New York, New York 10118
(212) 763-0883

jquinn(@kaplanhecker.com

Attorneys for Defendant Amber Laura Heard




EX

BIT A

John C. Depp, 11 Iv..
Fairfax County Circuit

DEFIN
a. Action. The term “Action” mear
b.

of words, thoughts, or ideas to another person,

text (SMS), letter, fax, e-mail, internet post

correspondence or by any other process,

Amber Laura Heard
Court: CL 2019-0002911

ITIONS

1s the above-captioned action.

Communication. The term “communication” means any oral or written exchange
whether person-to-person, in a group, by phone,

or correspondence, social networking post or

electric, electronic, or otherwise. All such

Communications are included without reg&rd to the storage or transmission medium

(electronically stored information and hard copies are included within this definition).

C. Document. The term “docum

recognized. The term shall include, without

information (whether printed, handwritten,

[

o

reproducible by any other process), drafts (revi
summaries of other documents, communication

social media posts or other similar commu

F»
>

nt” is defined in its broadest terms currently

limitations: any written or other compilation of
recorded, or encoded, produced, reprodﬁced, or
ions or finals), original or preliminary notes, and
s of any type (e-mail, text messages, blog posts,

nications or correspondence), computer tape,

computer files, and including all of their contents and attached files. The term “document” shall

: - |
also include but not be limited to: correlspondence, memoranda, contractual documents,

specifications, drawings, photographs, images,

inspection reports, evaluations, technical r

aperture cards, notices of revisions, test reports,

eports, schedules, agreements, -reports, studies,

analyses, projections, forecasts, summaries, records of conversations or interviews, minutes or

records of conferences or meetings, manuals,

héndbooks, brochures, pamphlets, advertisements,



circulars, press releases, financial statements, icalendars, diaries, trip reports, etc. A draft of a

non-identical copy is a separate document within the meaning of this term.

11

d. Correspondence. The term [“correspondence” means any document(s) and/or

communication(s) sent to or received from another entity and/or person.

e. Person. The term “person” is defined as any natural person, business, company,
partnership, legal entity, governmental entity,! an/or association.

f. Concerning. The term “concén!ﬁng” includes relating to, referring to, describing,

evidencing, or constituting,. !
'
g Including. The term “including’’ means including but not limited to.

h. And/or. The use of “and/t?r?’ shall be interpreted in every instance both
i
conjunctively and disjunctively in order to briiné within the scope of these discovery requests any

information which might otherwise be constrliled to be outside their scope.

i. Defendant and/or Ms. Heard.sl The terms “Defendant” and/or “Ms. Heard” refer

! |
1

to Defendant Amber Laura Heard, including her agents, representatives, employees, assigns, and
all persons acting on her behalf.

j. Plaintiff and/or Mr. Depp. 'II“he terms “Plaintiff” and/or “Mr. Depp” refer to
Plaintiff John C. Depp, II, including his agisl}té, representatives, employees, assigns, and all

persons acting on his behalf.

|
k. Complaint. The term “Complaint” shall mean the Complaint filed by Plaintiff in
|
n
a. Relevant Date Range. A Relevant Date Range is any of the following date

this Action. I

ranges (inclusive of the first and last day of each range):

i. 08/01/2012 - 05/01/201’3 ‘



il. 03/07/2013 — 03/21/2013

iii. 05/24/2014 — 07/31/2014

iv. 08/01/2014 — 09/07/2014
. 12/01/2014 - 12/31/20‘14l,
vi. 01/20/2015 —02/14/20|15:
vii.  03/03/2015— 04/21/2015:
viii.  03/21/2015 — 04/1 1/2015{
ix.  08/01/2015-09/15/2015
X. 11/25/2015 — 12/13/201{5‘
Xi. 12/01/2015 —01/14/20156
xii.  04/01/2016 — 05/20/201i6i
xiii.  05/21/2016 — 06/21/20f 6
xiv.  07/01/2016 — 08/01/2016
b. Romantic Partners. The termi “Romantic Partners” shall mean any persons You
know to have been in an intimate relationship with Mr. Depp.

C.

You and/or Your. The terms {*You” and/or “Your” refer to the recipient of this

Subpoena, as well as all persons and entities over which said recipient has “control” as
1

understood by the Rules of this Court.

INSTRUCTIONS

1.

.. . . . .
privileged information in the possession

Where information in Your poss
|

ession is requested, such request includes non-

of Your agent(s), employee(s), assign(s),

representative(s), and all others acting on Your behalf,



2. Whenever appropriate in these! Requests, the singular form of a word shall be

interpreted as its plural to whatever extent is necessary to bring within the scope of these

Requests any information which might otherwise be construed to be outside their scope.

3. Unless otherwise indicated, tPese Requests refef .to the time, place, and
|
circumstances of the occurrences mentioned clyr ’complained of in the pleadings in this case.

4, All references to an entity include the entity and its agents, officers, employees,
representatives, subsidiaries, divisions, succéss:ors, predecessors, assigns, parents, affiliates, and
unless privileged, its attorneys and accountan{s.i

5. If You perceive any ambiguities in a question, instruction, definition, or other
aspect of this Subpoena, set forth the matter deemed amﬁiguous and the construction used in
answering. ! |

6. If You assert a claim of privil.lege as to any of Your responses to the Requests,
state the basis for the asserted privilege, spie(fify the privilege claimed, and include in Your
answer sufficient information to permit an inflorlmed ruling on the claim of privilege. If the claim
relates to a privileged document, state the datei_:, person or persons who prepared or participated in
preparing the document, the name and addresis. of any person to whom the document was shown
or sent, the general subject matter of the d!o%ument, the present or last known location and
cuétodia.n of the original of the document, and t:he basis for the claim of privilege with respect to
the document. If the claim of privilege reIates’ ti) a communication, state the date(s), place(s) and
person(s) involved in the communication, the :subj ect matter of the communication, and the basis

1
for the claim of privilege with respect to that communication.



7. If You perceive any Request to be overly broad, unduly burdensome, or
objectionable for any other reason, respond [to the fullest extent possible and clearly note any

objection so as to permit an informed ruling on the objection.

8.  These Requests are continuing|in character so as to require You to promptly
|
amend or supplement Your production of dolcf}ments within a reasonable time if You obtain or
v
become aware of any further documents responsive to this Subpoena.
I

DOCUMENTS 1[T'0 BE PRODUCED

- In response to this subpoena, YOU ar:ls }equired to produce the original or an exact copy
of the following:
1. "All documents and communicatibns exchanged between You and Mr. Depp (or

any person or entity acting on his behalf) within any Relevant Date Range.

2. All documents and communications relating to Your statements made in the

following Twitter posts on or around May 28, 2016:
I

|
i. “known Johnny Depp for iyears and through several relationships. He's the
: | :
sweetest, kindest, gentlest man that I've ever known. Just saying.”
i, “All I'm saying—Domes’Eic' violence is a serious allegation. Trial by twitter

is unhelpful. Let the facLs come out before rushing to judgment”
3. All documents and communicat!io:ns concerning any transactions, payments, gifts,
o
or transfers of value of any kind, whether in mor?etary form or otherwise, made by Mr. Depp
(and/or any entity or person affiliated or associ!at%d with Mr. Depp or acting on his behalf) to or |

for the benefit of You (ahd/or any entity or per;soin affiliated or associated with You or acting on
I I
o
Your behalf). i i
N

]
1



4. All documents and communications concerning any use of drugs (whether legal

or illegal) and/or alcohol by Mr. Depp.

5. All documents and communications concerning any act or alleged act of physical

violence and/or abuse involving Ms. Heard (whether or not Ms. Heard was violent and/or

abusive), P
6. All documents and communications exchanged between You and Mr. Depp (or

any person or entity acting on his behalf) thatirelate to or refer to any of Mr. Depp’s Romantic

Partners (including Ms. Heard) and which concern any act of physical violence and/or abuse

invoiving Mr. Depp (whether or not Mr. Depp himself was violent and/or abusive).

7. All documents and communicaltions concerning any act or alleged act of physical

L.
violence and/or abuse involving Mr. Depp and any person (whether or not Mr. Depp himself was

violent and/or abusive).
|

8.  All documents and communicalti(')ns concerning any act or alleged act of Mr.
| '

Depp that resulted in damage to property. '

* * *




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that on this 5th day of November ZOII?, a copy of the foregoing shall be served by first
class mail, postage prepaid, and by email, upon!

Benjamin G. Chew, Esq.

Elliot J. Weingarten, Esq.
Andrew C. Crawford, Esq.
BROWN RUDNICK LLP

601 Thirteenth Street, NN\W.
Washington, D.C. 20005
Telephone: (202) 536-1700
Facsimile: (202) 536-1701
behew(@brownrudnick.com
eweingarten@brownrudnick.com

acrawford@brownrudnick.com

Camille M. Vasquez, Esq.
BROWN RUDNICK LLP

2211 Michelson Drive

Irvine, CA 92612

Telephone: (949) 752-7100
Facsimile: (949) 252-1514
cvasquez@brownrudnick.com

J. Benjamin Rottenborn

Joshua Treece

WooDSs ROGERS PLC

10 S. Jefferson Street

Suite 1400

Roanoke, VA 24011
Telephone: (540) 983-7540
Facsimile: (540) 983-7711
brottenbormn{@woodsrogers.com

jitreece@woodsrogers.com

Adam R. Waldman, Esq.
THE ENDEAVOR LAW FIRM, P.C.

. 1 1775 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W., Suite 350

| Washington, DC 20006

. ' awaldman@theendeavorgroup.com

, Robert Gilmore, Esq.

| Kevin Attridge, Esq.

; STEIN MITCHELL BEATO & MISSNER LLP
901 Fifteenth Street, N.'W.

Suite 700

.+ Washington, D.C. 20005

Telephone: (202) 601-1589
Facsimile: (202) 296-8312
.rgilmore{@steinmitchell.com
kattridge(@steinmitchell.com

Counsel for Plaintiff John C. Depp, I
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CIVIL INTAKE

cL. 20

CIVIL ACTION NUMBER:

-S'HEET

19 02949

HOW RECEIVED: COUNTER

JUDGMENT AMOUNT: § 50,000: 000 -+

46k

CREDIT CARD FEE: §

FILING FEE: $

" TOTAL AMOUNT: § - %\-Uo

CLERKS INITIALS: . -

]
check_V cash

CREDIT CARD___

MO

VS4 FORM: YES NO

ID Presented (CWP):

SERVICE TYPE:

SHERIFF: SPS: (/
o RM:

oPUB: CM: _

SOC:__ bmv sce

SHERIFE AMOUNT

SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS:

CERTIFIED COPIES:

D%m&%bm

Chvil intake = Intake Sheet

" Updated 7/5/18




FINAL DISPOSITION

Flducia

(::ase#cg‘ig 0291?

DEFENDANTS Dato Final Final Final | Fimat Final
-Ordor #1 | Order#f2 | Order#3 | Order#4
1. TRIALJURY I {T)
2, TRIAL-JUDGE wNVITNEsls (TNJ)
3, DEFAULT JUDGMENT . (B4)
4. SETTLEMENT | | (SETL)
5. NONSUIT ! l (NS)
6, VOLUNTARY DISMISSAL | {DIS)
7. DECREE ON nEPosméJaf _(DD)
3 REPQRT BY commssulohien {FOCR)
Other Comments: OTHER - R {FO) (SJ) (FD)
' ' GARNISHMENT B
CONCEALED WEAPON Eégmn
APPT CHURCH TRUSTElEsEJSubstImte  FID
NAME CHANGE
PURGED AFTER 2 YEARS 2Y0
PURGED AFTER 3 ve.quls {3vo)
E.H. Date; i .
E.H. Date; '
T
TRIAL DATE NUMBER OF JURY DIA\lS FINAL ALL DEFENDANTS CLERK'S OFFICE
; |
]
RE-OPENDATE . | REMAND  (REM) MOTION TYPE RE-CLOSE DATE CLERK'S
| REINSTATE (REI) | OFFICE
MISTRIAL _@L) il
T
3. E |
‘. |

Clvil Intake — Final Disposition Form

Updated 9/2008




FAIRFAX CIRCUIT COURT

Parties:

CIVIL CASEl ('i:OVERSHEET

2019 02949

Flalntitfs

!

Defendants

4John C. Depp il

1_Ambar Laura Heard

2. 2.
s s
*Plalntiff proceeding without Counse! —~ Address and Daytime Phone Number required on Complaint
Plaintiff Attorney: ' =3 g
jami : 2 3 o
Name: BENJAMIN G. Chew BarD:29113 e, = 2
i =0 ZZm ="
rirm: Brown Rudnick LLP 37 ;._.% B Fz
‘ i T2, ~ Z=0
street: 601 13th Street, NW, Suite 600 | | —_i:i.:aq - SO
?ﬂm—&—_@# -
Phone Number: 202-536-1785 Fax Number; 202-936-1701 c £
e

E-mail Address: PChew@brownrudnick.com

Nature of Complaint (Check only bne)

L
I

* Cases in tlhe Civil Tracking Program

Administrative. Appeal

Defamation *

[ ] Malpractice — Medical *

Affirmaticn of Marriage

Delinquent Taxes *

Mechanics/Vendors Lien *

Aid & Guidance:

FEminent Domain

Partition *

Appeal Decision of Board of Zoning

Encumbei/Sell Real Estate

Personal Injury — Assault *

Appeal of Process/Judicial Appeal

Erroneous Assessments

Personal Injury — Auto *

ppointment Church/Organization Expungement Personal Injury — Emotional *
rustees L
bitration l_r‘FaIse Arrest/Imprisonment* Personal [njury — Premises
[ | Liabllity*
ttachment iduciary/Estate Complaint Property Damage”*
Complaint — Equity * arnishment-Federal-180 days Products Liability*
Complaint — Legal Cause of Action * Garnishment-wage-180 days Quiet Title *

Compromise Setflement

Garnishment-Other - 90 days

Real Estate *

Condemnation®

Guardian/Conservator Adult

Restoration of Driving Privilege

Confession of Judgment Guardianship/Minor Vital Record Correction
Construction * Injunction - ! Writ Habeas Corpus
Contract * Interpleader’ Writ Mandamus
Conversion® Insurance * Wrongful Death*

Court Satisfaction of Judgment

Uudicial Review

Wrongful Discharge *

State Corporation Commissio

ublication

Declare Death Malicious Prosecution * QTHER:
Declaratory Judgment * - Malpractice - Legal * i
. - 1
Damages in the amount of $ 50:000,000 and punitives 2., 1oimeq.
Requested Service: {SheriffE.Private Process ServériDM\/E;Secretarv of Commonwealth [:I

No Service at this time

CCR D-90 Civil Coversheet (Revised — October 2011)




FILED

CIVIL INTAKE
VIRGINIA: . . .
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF FAIRFAX COUNTY20I9HAR -1 PH12: 45
l ) JOHN T. FREY
- : CLER, CIRCUIT CBURT
John C. Depp, II, ; ; FAIRFAX, VA
|
- | :
Plaintiff, L)
v. ’ ! | ) cwil &8 02911
I ) )
Amber Laura Heard, ©)
C)
Defendant. )
l .
COMPLAINT

Plaintiff John C. Depp, II, a/k/a Johnny Depp, in support of his Complaint against

Defendant Amber Laura Heard hereby states theafollowmg

NATURE OF THE ACTION
o |
1. " This defamation action arises from an op-ed published in the Washington Post by
|

actress Amber Heard (“Ms. Heard”). In thé (;)p-Bd, Ms. Heard purported to write from the
perspective of “a public figure representing dcémlnestic abuse” and claimed that she “felt the full
force of our culture’s wrath for women whoi slpeak out” when she “spoke up against sexual
violence,” : i

2,. ,.-Although she never identified le by name, the op-ed plainly was about (and
other media consistently characterized it as being about) Ms. Heard’s purported victimization
after she publicly accused her former husband, Johnny Depp (“Mr. Depp™), of domestic abuse in
2016, when she appeared in court with an apparently battered face and obtained a temporary
restraining order against Mr. Depp on May 27, 2016. The op-ed depended on the central prerlnise
that Ms. .Heard was a domestic abuse victim and that Mr. Depp perpetrated domestic violénce

against her,



3. . The op-ed’s clear implication that Mr. Depp is a domestic abuser is categorically

and demonstrably false. Mr, Depp never abused Ms. Heard, Her allegations against him were
false when they were made in 2016. They were part of an claborate hoax to generate positive

publicity for Ms. Heard and advance her career. Ms. Heard’s false allegations against Mr. Depp

have been conclusively refuted by two separlatle responding police officers, a litany of neutral
th:rd-party witnesses, and 87 newly obtained survclllance camera videos. With a prior arrest for
violent ddmestic abuse and having confessed under oath to a series of violent attacks on Mr.
Depp, M;. Heard is not a victim of domestic albuse; she is a perpetrator. Ms, Heard violently
.abused Mr. Depp, just as she was caught and arrested for violently abusing her former domestic
partner. o |

4, Ms. Heard’s implication in he:ri ojp-ed that Mr. Depp is a domestic abuser is not
only demonstrably false, it is defamatory per se ! ! . Ms. Heard falsely implied that Mr. Depp was
guilty of domestic violence, which is a crime i'm]rolving moral turpitude, Moreover, Ms. Heard’s
false implication prejudiced Mr. Depp in his!career as 2 film actor and incalculably (and
immediately).damaged his reputation as a publlic_figure.

S. Unsurprisingly, Mr. Depp’s répﬁtation and- career were devastated when Ms,
Heard first accused him of domestic violence on May 27, 2016, Ms. Heard’s hoax allegations
were timed t6 coincide with the day that Mr. D’eép’s film, Alice Through the Looking Glass, was
released in theatres. Her op-ed, with its fals;a ;implication that she was a victim of domestic
violence -at the hands of Mr. Depp, brought néav:v damage to Mr. Depp’s reputation and career.
Mr. Depp lost movie roles and faced public scorﬂ. Ms. Heard, an actress herself, knew prcci;sely

the effect that her op-ed would have on Mr, De'p113. And indeed, just four days after Ms. Hea;rd’s

op-ed was ﬁrs_t published on December 18, 2018, Disney announced on December 22,2018 that



it was dropping Mr, Depp from his leading |role as Captain Jack Sparrow—a role that he
created—in the multi-billion-dollar-earning Pirates of the Caribbean franchise.

6. Ms, Heard published her op-ed with actual malice. She knew that Mr, Depp did

not abuse her and that the domestic abuse alllegations that she made against him in 2016 were

false. She kniew that the testimony and photqgf'aphic “evidence” that she presented to the court
he

Iby her two friends were false and perjurious. Ms.

Heard knew that the truth was that she violenltlyi' abused Mr. Depp—just as she violently abused

and the supporting sworn testimony provided

her prior doniestic partner, which led to her ati‘re|st and booking for domestic violence, as well as

a night in jail and a mug shot. Ms. Heard revived her false allegations against Mr. Depp in the
op-ed to generate positive publicity for herself and to promote her new movie Aquaman, which

premiered across the United States and in Vir'ginia only three days after the op-ed was first

published. | i

7. MTr. Depp brings this defamationj action to clear his name. By this civil lawsuit,
|

Mr. Depp seeks to restore his reputation and qst;ablish Ms. Heard’s legal liability for continuing
[

her campaign to push a false narrative that h;e

|

| .
Depp seeks an award of compensatory damagesl, for the reputational harm that he suffered as a

committed domestic violence against her. M,

result of Ms. Heard’s op-ed, with its false aind defamatory implication that Mr. Depp was a
domestic abuser. Further, given the willﬁ.xlnes:s and maliciousness that Ms. Heard demonstrated
when she‘knb'wingly published the op-ed wi‘thE the false implication that Mr. Depp violently
abused hgr, Mr. Depp also secks an award of piiln!itive damages.
| PARTIES
!

8. Plaintiff John C. Depp is an indi\!fidual and a resident of the State of California.

For decades, he has been one of the most promin;nt actors in Hollywood. Mr. Depp was married

|
|
|3
|

1
|
|



to Ms, Heard for approximately 15 months between February 1, 2015 and May 23, 2016, They
had no children together. Mr. Depp was the target of Ms. Heard’s false and defamatory op-ed in

the Washington Post.

9. Defendant Amber Laura Heard is an individual and a resident of the State of
California. .Ms. Heard is an actress and Mr. Depp's former wife. Ms. Heard authored and
published the-defamatory op-ed in the Was{zingron Post that falsely implied that Mr, Depp

abused her during their marriage. ! |

JURISPICTION AND VENUE

10. ~ This Court has specific persopa:] Jurisdiction over Defendant under Virginia’s
long-arm statute, Va. Code § 8.01-328.1, as \lzve:ll as under the Due Process Clause of the U.S.
Constimt'ion, because, among other things, tﬂelcauses of action in this Complaint arise from
Defendant tréhsacting business in this Commonlwealth and causing tortious injury by an act or

. e g . ' . T .
omission in this Commonwealth. Moreover, exercising jurisdiction would not offend traditional

notions of fair play and substantial justice because Defendant could have — indeed should have

— reasonably foreseen being haled into a Virginia court to account for her false and defamatory

op-ed which was published: in a newspaper th!at is printed in Springfield, Virginia; in an online
edition of the newspaper that is created on a d!igital platform in Virginia and routed through
servers in Virginia; in a newspaper that has vaide circulation in Virginia and even pubﬁshes a
Virginia local edition in which the false and de:faplatory op-ed appeared; and in a newspaper that
maintains: two physical offices in Virginia.! ;Further, Defendant published the false and
defamatory op-ed to promote her new movic!, v!/hich was in Virginia theatres for viewing by

Virginia audiences. |



11.  Venue is proper in this circuit under Va. Code § 8.01-262 because the causes of

action asserted herein arose in this Circuit.

FACTS

Ms, Heard Wrote An Op-Ed In The Washi!ltgmn Post That Implies That She Was A Victim

Of Domestic Abuse At The Hands Of Mr. Depp
|

) 1

12.  Mr. Depp has appeared in moré tl;qan 50 films over the last three decades. He has

worldwide name recognition and has played la diverse array of iconic roles, including Edward
Scissorhar‘lds,"..Willy Wonka, Captain Jack iS!parrow, The Mad Hatter, Grindelwald, John
Dellinger, and Whitey Bulger. His movies ha!wF grossed over $10 billion dollars in the United
States and around thé world. He has won the Fje(!Jple’s Choice Award 14 times.

13. - Mr., Depp married Ms. Heard 0151 February 1, 2015. The two met when Ms, Heard
was cast in Mr. Depp’s film The Rum Diary. , :

14.  The marriage lasted only 15 mo;nt?ls.

15.  Unbeknownst to Mr. Depp, no, later than one month after his marriage to Ms.
Heard, she was spending time in a new relationlsh'jp with Tesla and Space-X founder, Elon Musk.
Only one calendar month after Mr. Depp and I\fIsI Heard were married—while Mr. Depp was out
of the country filming in March 201 S—Easterin Columbia Building personnel testified that Ms.
Heard received Musk “late at night” at Mr. chpp’s penthouse. Specifically, Ms. Heard asked
staff at the Eastern Columbia Building to give 1her “friend Elon” access to the building’s parlldng
garage and the penthouse elevator “late at night;” and they testified that they did so. Building
staff wou.Id then see Ms. Heard’s “friend Elon” leaving the building the next morning. Musk’s

I

' a ! i
first appearance in Mr. Depp’s penthouse occurred shortly after Ms. Heard threw a vodka bottle

at Mr. Depp in Australia, when she learned tha:t Mr. Depp wanted the couple to enter into a post-



nuptial agreement concerning assets in their marriage. Ms. Heard’s violently aimed projectile

virtually severed Mr, Depp’s middle finger on his right hand and shattered the bones.

16, M Depp’s marriage to Ms. Heard came to an end in May 2016. After Mr. Depp

indicated to Ms. Heard that he wanted to leave the marriage, Ms. Heard Jured Mr. Depp to his
penthouse to I_)iCI; up his personal items. Unaware that members of Mr. Depp’s security team
(including an. 18-year veteran of the Los Ang:el%s County Sherriff’s Department) Qere mere feet
away, Ms, Heard falsely began yelling “stopi kiitting me Johnny.” The interaction culminated
with Ms, Heard making false allegations that Mr. Depp struck her with a cell phone, hit her, and
destroyed the penthouse. There were multiple eyewitnesses to this hoax. Ms, Heard’s friend
then calléd the police, \&ho arrived promptly. bbon their arrival, Ms. Heard refused to cooperate
with police or make any claims that she had been injured or ;ssaulted, and two domestic abuse
trained police officers testified that after closwi ix}spection of Ms. Heard and the penthouses, they
obsetved no injury to Ms. Heard or damage to{ the penthouses. But then, six days later, iMs.

Heard preseritéd herself to the world with a battéred face as she publicly and falsely accused M,

Depp of domestic violence and obtained a restraining order against him, based on false testimony

that she and her friends provided. |

17.  Now there are newly obtained surveillance camera videos, depositions, and other

evidence that conclusively disprove Ms. Heard's false allegations. Although much of this
exculpatory evidence was collected by certain’ members Mr. Depp’s then-legal team in 2016, it

only recently came into Mr. Depp’s possession,ias it had been hidden from him for a period of

years, '

18. . Ms. Heard later withdrew her fial;se domestic violence allegations and dismissed

the restraining order. She and Mr. Depp finalized their divorce in January 2017, |
' |



19: - Despite dismissing the restraining order and withdrawing the domestic abuse

allegations, Ms. Heard (and her surrogates) have continuously and repeatedly referred to her in

publications, public service announcements, spcial media postings, speeches, and interviews as a

vietim of domestic violence, and a “survivor,” always with the clear implication that Mr. Depp

was her supposed abuser.
20.  Most recently, in December, 2;018, Ms. Heard published an op-ed in the
- [ i

Washington Post that falsely implied that Ms. Heard was a victim of domestic violence at the

[

hands of Mr. Depp. The op-ed was first published on the Washington Post’s website on

I
December 18, 2018 with the title, “Amber Helard: I spoke up against sexual violence — and

|
faced our culture’s wrath. This has to change.” The op-ed appeared again on December 19,
N

2018 in the Washington Post’s hardcopy editi':;mi under the title, “A Transformative Moment For
Women.”. Except for their titles, the onliﬁc; and hard copy versions of the op-ed were
substantively identical and are referred to colleictively herein as the “Sexual Violence” op-ed.

21, The “Sexual Violence” op-ed’s|central thesis was that Ms. Heard was a victim of
domestic violence and faced personal and professional repercussions because she “spoke up”
against “sexual violence” by “a powerful man.

2."2. Although Mr. Depp was never identified by name in the “Sexual Violence” op-ed,
Ms. Heard m’a.kes clear, based on the foundatic:m's of the false accusations that she made against
Mr. Depp in court filings and subsecjuently reitrefated in the press for years, that she was talking
about Mr. Depp and the domestic abuse allegations that she made against him in May 2016, Ms,

* Heard wrote:

e “Amber Heard: [ spoke up against sexual violence — and faced our culture’s wrath.
That has to change.”



o “Then two years ago [the precise time frame of her allegations against and divorce
from Mr. Depp], I became a public fl'lgure representing domestic abuse, and I felt the
tull force of our culture’s wrath for, women who speak out.”

» *“I had the rare vantage point of seemg, in real time, how institutions protect men
. accused of abuse.”

¢ “I write this as a woman who had io change my phone number weekly because | was
getting death threats. For months, Iirarely left my apartment, and when I did, 1 was
pursued by camera drones and photographers on foot, on motorcycles and in cars.
Tabloid outlets that posted p1ctures lof me spun them in a negative light. I felt as
~ though I was on trial in the courti of public opinion — and my life and livelihood
depended on myriad judgments far lbeyond my control,”
23.  As these statements reflect, the,whole op-ed proceeds from the notion—presented
o
as an unassailable truth—that Ms. Heard was the victim of domestic violence at the hands of Mr.

Depp. She was not. Ms, Heard is not a vietir'n of domestic violence, and Mr. Depp is not a
-

N
perpetrator of domestic violence. And the certerpiece of Ms. Heard’s attention-seeking hoax—

her claim that Mr. Depp savagely injured her faee by throwing her own iPhone at her from point
blank range as hard as he could and then continued to beat her face with other “appendages of his
body” on the evening of May 21, 2016, which' caused her to have the battered face that she first
presented to the court and the world on May 27, 2016—was a poorly executed lie that
nevertheless has endured for nearly three years iThe statements in her “Sexual Violence” op-ed

that 1mpIy otherwise are false and defamatory,
I

Ms. Heard Was Not A Victim Of Dorlnestlc Yiolence: She Was A Perpetrator

24, Long before Ms. Heard became a self-described “public figure representing

domestic abuse” based on her false domestic v1qlence alIegations against Mr, Depp, Ms. Heard

was in an abusive relationship. But Ms. Heard was not the victim in that relationship. She was

LI
P
]
'
'

the abuser.,



25. | On September 14, 2009, police officers at the Seattle-Tacoma International
Airport witnessed Ms. Heard physically assault her then-domestic partner, Tasya van Ree. Ms.
Heard grabbed Ms. van Ree by the arm, hit Ms. van Ree in the arm, and yanked Ms. van Re'c’s
ncéklace off her neck. Ms. Heard was arrested. She was booked for misdemeanor doniestic

violence,‘ﬁ mug shot was taken of her, and she spent the night in jail. The following day, the

Seattle-based- prosecutor declined to press charges against Ms, Heard, but only because both she

i
Washington state, |
|

26.  Since casting herself as a dome:stic abuse victim, Ms. Heard has attempted to

|
and her domestic abuse victim were California residents who were merely passing through

blame misogyny and homophobia for her dor‘nestic violence arrest—claiming that she was

arrested “on a trumped up charge” because sh? was in a same-sex relationship. In truth, the
. | !

police off;lccf who arrested Ms. Heard for domestic violence was both a woman and a lesbian
activist, who publicly said so after she was pubiliély disparaged by Ms. Heard.

27 Ms. Heard’s violent domesti;: abuse did not end when her relationship with Ms,
van Ree ended. Ms. Heard committed multiple acts of domestic violence against Mr. Depp

I
during their marriage. Ms. Heard’s physical ?Huse of Mr. Depp is documented by eyewitness

[
accounts, photographs, and even Ms, Heard’s own admissions under oath.

|
28,  In one particularly gruesome e'pilsode that occurred only one month into their
1

marriage, Ms. Heard shattered the bones in thetip of Mr, Depp’s right middle finger, almost
o

. »
completely cutting it off, Ms, Heard threw a élass vodka bottle at Mr. Depp—one of many

projectiles that she Jaunched at him in this and other instances. The bottle shattered as it came
C

into contact with Mr. Depp’s hand, and the br'okfen glass and impact severed and shattered:l_vlr.



Depp’s finger. Mr. Depp’s finger had to be surgically reattached, Ms. Heard then disseminated

false accounts of this incident, casting Mr. Depp as the perpetrator of his own injury. |

1

29.  Ms. Heard’s domestic abuse of|Mr, Depp continued unabated throughout their,15-

month marriage. Ms. Heard threw dangerous objects at Mr, Depp, and also kicked and punched

him with regularity. |
|
30.  Shockingly, Ms. Heard even hés used one of her attacks on Mr. Depp to push her
B
false narrative that she is a domestic abuse vilctjm. In her false affidavit to obtain a restraining

order against Mr. Depp, Ms. Heard recounted cll ciiomestic violence incident that occurred between
her and Mr. Depp on April 21, 2016 and rc\!ferised the roles, claiming that she was the victim
when in truth she was the perpetrator. Ms, 'Heard falsely claimed that Mr, Depp physically
attacked her, threw glasses at her, and brokf; ei champagne bottle in their penthouse after her
thirtieth i)irthday celebration on April 21, 2()il§. In truth, Ms. Heard—angry with Mr, Depp

because he was late to her birthday celebration due to a business meeting — punched Mr. Depp
| .
twice in the face as he lay in bed reading, fo:rcing him to flee their penthouse to avoid further
. i

domestic violence at the hands of Ms. Heard. ;Mr. Depp’s security detail member, Sean Bett (an
18-year veteran of the Los Angeles Count& Sherriff’s Department) picked up Mr. Depp

immediately after Ms. Heard assaulted him anc:l \?\/itnessed firsthand the aftermath and damage to

| | '
Mr. Depp’s face. On other occasions—aftleri ‘Ms. Heard violently attacked Mr, Depp in

December 2015—Mr. Bett insisted on taking photographs to document the damage to Mr.

Depp’s face inflicted by Ms, Heard. i i

31. - Thus, contrary to the false and fdéfamatory implication in her “Sexuval Violence”
op-ed, Ms. Heard was never a victim of domesitic:: violence at the hands of Mr. Depp. Ms. Heard

herself is a domestic abuser, who committed multiple acts of domestic violence against Mr, Depp

10 T



during their marriage, in addition to the domestic abuse that she perpetrated against her former

partner.

Ms. Heard’s Domestic Abuse Allegations Against Mr. Depp Are False And Have Been
' Refuted Conclusively By Pohce,!Neutml Third-Party Witnesses, and
87 Surveillance deeos

32, Ms. Heard did not “[speak] uplagainst sexual violence” as she claimed in her op-
I

ed. She madé false allegations of domestic abusL: against Mr. Dc;pp to execute her hoax.

33.  The centerpiece of Ms. Heard’s| false abuse allegations is an incident that she
claimed took place around 7:15 pm on Saturd:ay, May 21, 2016 at Mr. Depp’s penthouse in the
Eastern Columbia Building in downtown Los lAlngeles. After Ms, Heard lured Mr. Depp to pick
up personal items from his own penthouse, Ms Heard sitting on the sofa with her friend, Raquel
Pennington, and talking on the phone with her ﬁ'lend io Tlllett Wright, claimed that Mr. Depp

grabbed the cell phone, wound up his arm llkp a baseball pitcher and threw the cell phone at me
striking my cheek and eye with great force.” Ms Heard also claimed that Mr. Depp further
battered her face w1th some “appendage of hlS body” and then used a magnum-sized bottle of

1
wine to destroy the penthouse, spilling wine, broken glass, and other items around the penthouse.

“Penthouée 3 was destroyed” by Mr. Depp’s i:uc:)ttle swinging, claimed Ms. Heard in her sworn
testimony. Her two friends testified accordingly. Ms. Heard used these allegations to. obtain a
temporary restraining order against Mr. Depp (E)ni May 27, 2016, appearing in court six days after
the alleged incident with the first appearance c;)f a battered face, notwithstanding that a litany of
people witnessed her throughout the week \%Vllth no injury and building surveillance vifleos
similarly showed her uninjured. {

34, Mr. Depp, it is worth noting, left Los Angeles for many weeks almost

immediately after the alleged incident. Andf ilt is also worth noting that building personnel

1
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testified under oath that they again facilitated Elon Musk’s nighttime visits to Mr, Depp’s
penthouse to visit Ms. Heard, key-fobbing him (in and out of the building proximate to the time

Ms. Heard presented her battered face to the public and the court on May 27, 2016.

35, Mr. Depp has consistently and unequivocally denied Ms. Heard’s domestic abuse

allegations. They also have been refuted conclusively by multiple, neutral third-party witnesses.

36. Ms. Heard’s friend and neig?bor, Isaac Baruch, gave a declaration that he
repeatedl); inieracted with Ms. Heard, at closeEre:mge, without makeup, and utterly unmarked and
unin:fured in the days between May 22 and Nliaé,' 27, 2016. He further stated in his declaration
that on June 3, after confronting Ms. Heard about how upset he was at her false abuse

allegations: “Amber then told me that she did not want anything from Johnny and that it was the

lawyers who were doing all of this.”

37. . -Police went to Mr. Depp’s perllt}}ousc on May 21, 2016, immediately after the

incident was alleged to have occurred, Theg/ ‘were dispatched after Ms, Heard’s friend, Mr.

v
Wright, called 911 to report what the police dispatch log describes as a “verbal argument only”
B

between a husband and wife. Two officers, who are highly trained in domestic violence, arrived

at the penthouse shortly afier Ms. Heard later cfla;imed that Mr. Depp struck her in the face with a

. I
cell phone, further hit her face, and then “destrbf(ed” his own penthouse by swinging a magnum-
|

sized bottle of wine into other objects throughout that penthouse. Officer Melissa Saenz is a
|

veteran Los Angeles Police officer who is :ch:arged with training other police officers and

personally has‘ responded to “over a hundred” chr'nestic violence calls, Officer Tyler Hadden is a

junior pol‘i-ce"ofﬁcer, but focused on domestic!violencc at the police academy and received

extensive training in how to detect that particuléricrime.



38.  Both Officer Saenz and Officer Hadden testified under ocath that they closely

observed Ms. Heard’s face in good light on May 21, 2016 and saw no signs of any injury, In the
police officers’ face-to-face interactions with| Ms., Heard immediately after she supposedly was

struck in'the face with a cell phone and then lfurther beaten in the face by Mr, Depp, the police

- officers saw no red marks, no bruising, and no swelling anywhere on Ms. Heard’s face. Both
Officer Saenz and Officer Hadden also testiﬁlec; under oath that, when they went room-to-room
in the p'ehthouses to investigate, they saw no lf)roken glass, no spilled wine, and no vandalism or
property daniégc of any kind. This is in ctintrast to Ms. Heard’s later claim that Mr. Depp
“dcstroygd” penthouse 3 and caused seriouEs,E visible injuries to her face. It also directly
contradicts Ms. Heard’s friend’s testimony regalrding what Ms.’ Heard’s face looked like at that
time: “Just tile whole side of her face was I;ike swolled up (sic) and red and puffy . . -. and
progressively getting worse.” l

39. _There was no probable cause to believe that a crime had been committed,
according to Officer Saenz’s testimony, because Ms. Heard had no injuries and claimed to have
no injuries, and there was no prc;perty damage 1n the penthouse or signs of any altercation.

40, . Multiple people who work profé:ssionally in the Eastern Columbia Building where
the Penthousc is located, and who do not kno“av‘Mr. Depp personally, also have unambiguously
debunked Ms. Heard’s claim that her face was %injured on May 21, 2016 and that she had any
sign of injury in the six days before May 27, 201.6' Three people, the building’s concierge, head
of front desk and head of security, profoun:dly testified under oath about their face-to-face
interactic;ns with Ms. Heard between May 22:, I2016 (the day after Ms. Heard claims that Mr.
Depp hit her and struck her in the eye and on tﬁe}cheek with a cell phone) and May 27, 2016 (the

day Ms, Heard appeared in public and went t0: court to get a restraining order against Mr. Depp



with what appeared to be a battered face). Every one of those three people testified under oath
that they saw Ms. Heard up close in the days|after the supposed attack and her face was not
injured before the day she obtained the restrbining order against Mr. Depp.

41.  Cornelius Harrell is a concierge at the Eastern Columbia Building and was

working at the front desk at 1 pm on the afternoon of Sunday, May 22, 2016, Mr. Harrell saw
Ms. Heard face-to-face that afternoon—less than 24 hours after she claims that she was struck in
the face by a cell phone thrown by Mr. Depp é'm!i hit in the face by Mr. Depp.

4;2. In an interaction that was also|captured by the Eastern Columbia Building’s

surveillance cameras and saved, Ms. Heard api)r!oached Mr. Harrell to pick up a package that had
|

been delivered to her. Ms. Heard accompar:lietd Mr. Harrell to the package room to identify

| .
which package she wanted because more than|one had been delivered to her. As they were
_ _ ,

looking through her packages, Mr. Harrell;allld Ms. Heard were inside the package room

together. The package room at the Eastern éColumbia Building is “no bigger than a walk-in
|
closet,”. so Mr. Harrell had an opportunity to observe Ms. Heard’s face up close, the day after she

claimed she was battered by Mr. Depp in the fécé:.
i

43.  Mr, Harrell testified under oath t:hat, on May 22, 2016, Ms. Heard did not have
any bruises, .cuts, scratches, or swelling on her face and that “nothing appeared out of the
ordinary about Ms, Heard’s face on May 22, 2016.” In fact, Mr. Harrell testified that he was

.
struck by how “beautiful,” “radiant,” and “refreshed” Ms. Heard looked, noting that, if she was

Py
wearing any ‘makeup at all, it was “minimal.”| I\i/Ir. Harrell unequivocally testified that when he
was interacting one-on-one in close quarters with Ms, Heard on May 22, 2016 for about 8

minutes, that he did not see any evidence to suggest that she had been the victim of domestic

violence the dhy before. Mr. Harrel! does not know Mr. Depp personally.
: !
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44,  Alejandro Romero also works at the Eastern Columbia Building, manning the

front desk and menitoring the security cameras|from 4:00 pm to 1:00 am Monday-Friday. Mr.

Romero had “hundreds” of in-person interalctLons with Ms, Heard when she resided in the

penthouse, in addition to observing her innumerable times on surveillance footage captured by

the Eastern Columbia Building’s security cameras. Mr. Romero testified under oath about two
specific face-to-face interactions that he had }vith Ms. Heard in the days after she claimed that
MTr, Depp hit her in the face and struck her cheielT and eye with a cell phone that he threw.

45.  Mr. Romero testified that on t}ie E“Monday or Tuesday” evening “after the police
were called”—May 23 or 24, 2016—he was aipI!Jroached at the front desk by Ms. Heard and. her

. : |
friend, Ms. Pennington, who also resided in tllle penthouse. Ms. Heard and Ms. Pennington

o :
asked Mr. Romero to accompany them to the|penthouse because they were afraid that someone
had tried to get inside the penthouse. Mr. Romero discounted this concern because he had been
monitoring sécurity footage and saw no one trying to access the penthouse. Nevertheless, Mr,

Romero agreed to accompany Ms. Heard and Ms, Pennington to the penthouse and confirm that

it was secure. He left the front desk with Ms. Heard and Ms. Pennington, rode up to the 13th

floor with them, and went inside the penthouse with them. Throughout this interaction, M.
Romero testified under oath that he had “a full shot” of Ms. Heard’s face and “a good visual” of

Ms, Heard’s face.and saw no bruises, cuts, swalilng, or marks of any kind.

46.  Mr. Romero interacted with Ms.iHeard again on the évening of May 25, 2016
when she came to the front desk to retrieve a kely to the penthouse that she had left at the front
desk. Again, in this face-to-face interaction, Mr. Romero testified that he saw no bruises, cuts,

swelling, or marks of any kind on Ms. Heard’s face,
I 1
! |

t
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47.  Based on his in-person interactions with Ms. Heard, Mr. Romero, who does not
know Mr. Depp personally, testified under oath|that he “couldn’t believe” Ms, Heard’s domestic

abuse allegations against Mr. Depp because:

It was like — it was like 1 said, we watched the news and we saw the pictures. And I saw
the pictures and the next day I saw her, I was like, come on, really? I couldn’t believe it.

It was — I saw her in person. . ... The pictures I saw on the news, she got like a big
mark on her — on her eyes and her cheek. And when I saw her in person, I didn’t see
anything.

48,  Trinity Esparza, the daytime éoincierge at the Eastern ColumBia Building who
works at the front desk from 8:00 am to 4:00 pm Monday-Friday, echoed Mr. Romero’s disbelief
at Ms. Heard’s account. Ms. Esparza, who does not know-Mr, Depp personally, testified under
oath that she thought that Ms. Heard’s allegatlioln that she had been assaulted by Mr. Depp was
“false’; because “I saw her several times [in thée days after the alleged _attack] and I didn’t see that

[mark] on her face.”

[
o
oy

49.  Ms. Esparza had multiple face-to-face interactions with Ms, Heard in the days
|

after Ms. Heard claimed that Mr. Depp hit he::r and struck her in the eye and cheek with a cell

phone. Ms, Esparza saw Ms. Heard in-persoinion Monday, May 23, 2016; Tuesday, May 24,
i
2016; Wednesday, May 25, 2016; and Fnday,' May 27, 2016. Ms. Esparza testified under oath

that, when she saw Ms. Heard on the ‘VIonday, Tuesday, and Wednesday after the alleged attack,

i
Ms. Heard was not wearing makeup and that iM|S Heard had no facial injuries. There were no
bruises or cuts on Ms, Heard’s face, according:to Ms. Esparza’s testimony. Ms. Esparza testified
’ [

under oath that she saw no indication that Ms. I;-Ieard had been hit or struck.

50.  Then, on Friday, May 27, 2016|, Ms Esparza testified under oath that Ms. Heard

suddenly “had a red cut underneath her right eye and red marks by her eye.” Then Ms. Esparza

learned from media reports that Ms. Heard had‘ obtained a domestic violence restraining order

N



against M. Depp on May 27, 2016. Because Ms. Esparza had seen Ms. Heard so many titnes

that week without any marks on her face, Ms. Esparza thought “the time didn’t add up and so I

was questioning . . . the mark on her face and the allegations that were made.”

51. - Ms. Esparza was so troubled bS( the sudden appearance of “a mark™ on Ms.

Heard’s face on the very day that Ms. Heard obtained a restraining order against Mr. Depp—but
. - | '
six days after the alleged incident—that Ms. Esparza went back and looked at security video

footage and talked to others who worked in tlie:Eastern Columbia Building to see if the “mark”
|

might ha\_/e been on Ms, Heard’s face earlier. It wasn’t.

52. 'Mr. Romero and Mr. Harrell cLonﬁrmed to Ms. Esparza that Ms. Heard did not
have any inju;'ies on her face when they interacted with her.

53.  Ms. Esparza also did not see thfI: ‘Emark” on Ms. Heard's face when she went back
and reviewed surveillance videos from the dayis E!lﬂer Ms. Heard claims that Mr. Depp hit her and
struck her in the face with a cell phone that he 1threw.

54.  But Ms, Esparza did see sometlhxing else on the surveillance video, On a video
from the evening of May 24, 2016, three njght; after Ms. Heard alleged that she was attacked by
Mr. Depp, Ms. Esparza saw Ms. Heard, her si:stéar, Whitney Heard, and Ms. Heard’s friend and
corroborating witness, Ms. Pennington, on ltllle mezzanine level of the Eastern Columbia
Building. In the surveillance video, Ms. Esliaairza testified under oath that she saw Whitney
Heard pretend to punch her sister in the face. Then Ms. Heard, Ms. Pennington, and Whitney
Heard ali lgughed. Ms. Esparza testified that slhe thought how Ms, Heard, Ms. Pennington, and

' - 1
Whitney Heard were acting on the surveillance video was “wrong,” and it only made her
o

question more how Ms. Heard ended up with a “mark” on her face three days later, on Friday,

May 27. Ms. Esparza knew that Mr. Depp had left Los Angeles for work on the day of the

17



alleged incident “and he did not return and so [ was questioning how those marks got on her face

on Friday.” Ultimately, Ms. Esparza testified under oath that she was forced to conclude that

“whatever happened to [Ms. Heard's] face did not happen on Saturday [May 217", as Ms. Heard
had alleged. i
!

55. .-Ms. Esparza is not the only !pxi-ofessional employee of the Eastern Columbia

Building to witness the “fake punch” video. Brandon Patterson, the General Manager of the
( :

Eastern Columbia Building, provided a declaration about it:
|
One of the surveillance videos, taken tHe evening of Tuesday, May 24, showed Amber
Heard, her sister Whitney Heard, and her friend Raquel Pennington entering the
building’s mezzanine. Trinity Esparza § showed me a video at the front desk with a pretend
punch to the face from one of Miss II—Ieard’s two companions, and the three of them
laughed hard: They then enter the penthouse elevator, where Ms. Heard’s face was
clearly visible, there were similarly no bruises, cuts, redness, swelling visible on Ms.
Heard’s face. |

56.  Later, in the media firestorm c<:)nceming Ms. Heard’s domestic abuse allegations

against Mr. Depp, Ms. Heard learned that tﬁe"e were media reports stating that people who

worked at the front desk of the Eastern Columbia Building had seen Ms. Heard without any
marks on her face, as indeed was their testim,ony.. Mr. Patterson, the General Manager of the
Eastern Columbia Building, summarized the te!stfmony of building staff in his own declaration:
Ms Heard was repeatedly observed i in the Eastern Columbla Building in the mulnple
days following the alleged assault without bruises, cuts, redness, swelling or any other
injuries to her face. These observations were made by people working at the front desk at
the Eastern Columbia Building who interacted with Ms, Heard in person and also saw
images of her on the building surveillance cameras.
57.  Approximately a week after shel made her domestic abuse allegations against Mr.
Depp, Ms. Heard approached Ms, Esparza and!Mr. Patterson, and asked the two of them to give

a statement to Ms, Heard’s “friend” at People Magazine. Ms. Heard wanted Ms. Esparza and

-
Mr. Patterson “to help retract the statement that was given to the press stating that the front desk

'
i
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had released this information [about seeing Ms. Heard with no injuries to her face] and [Ms.
Heard] asked if we would clarify it and let them know that we, in fact, would never release that

information on any resident.” MTr. Patterson and Ms. Esparza refused to give the statement and

directed Ms. Heard to the Eastern Columbia Biuillding’s lawyer.

58.  Ms. Esparza testified that she was “not comfortable” with “the statement that [Ms.
Heard] was proposing that [the building] mak]‘e :to People Magazine, that the building would not
have said they saw [Ms. Heard] without marksi on her face” “because that would have been a lie”
as “the front desk did, in fact, see [Ms. Heard:] prior to Friday [May 27, 2016] without marks on
her face.” - i ‘

59.  The people working at the front desk of the Eastern Columbia Building did not

see any injuries to Ms, Heard’s face because there were no injuries to Ms. Heard’s face. Ms.
: . ]
Heard’s allegations that Mr. Depp’s battered herjwas a poorly executed hoax,

1

60.  The police officers, who responded to the penthouse on May 21, 2016

|
immediately after the alleged attack, saw no si'ngs that Ms. Heard had been hit or struck by a cell
. i

phone or that a magnum-sized bottle of wine| had “destroyed” the penthouse because trose

things never happened. There was no probabl{e cause to believe a crime had been committed

because no crime had been committed against Ms. Heard by Mr. Depp.
61.  Ms. Heard’s domestic violence;alllegations against Mr. Depp were false, as is her

portrayal of herself in her “Sexual Violence"lop-ed as a domestic violence victim and her
portrayal of Mr. Depp as a domestic violence perpetrator and “monster.”
. | !

Ms, Heard Acted With Actual Malice When She Implied In Her “Sexual Viclence” Op-Ed
_ That She Was A Victim Of Domestic Abuse At The Hands Of Mr, Depp
E .



62.  Ms. Heard acted with actual malice when she published her false and defamatory
“Sexual Violence” op-ed and implied that she was a victim of domestic abuse at the hands of Mr.

Depp.

63.  Ms. Heard knew that she was not the domestic abuse victim, but the domestic
abuser. !

64,  Ms. Heard knew that her domeist%c abuse allegations againster. Depp were false
and that she leveled them and enlisted her frii:nds to act as surrogates for her lies, as part of an
elaborate hoax to generate positive publicity for herself.

65. Ms. Heard also knew that het elaborate hoax worked: as a result of her false
allegations against Mr, Depp, Ms, Heard becaui:le a darling of the #MeToo movement, was the
first actress named a Human Rights Champiori é)f‘ the United Nations Human Rights Office, was
appointed ambassador on women’s rights at the American Civil Liberties Union, and was hired

. D
by L'Oréal Paris as its global spokesperson, ! :

66.  Because of the past success that her false domestic abuse allegations against Mr.
a .

Depp had brought her, Ms. Heard revived the fTalse allegations to promote her new movie.

67.  Aquaman, Ms. Heard’s first lea!ding role in a big-budget studio film, premiered in
- I !

theatres across the United States (and in Virginia) on December 21, 2019, The movie ended up
making over $1 billion at the box office globally.

68.  Tellingly, just days before the br,emiere, Heard published her “Sexual Violence”
[
b

op-ed with its false implication that she was a domestic abuse victim at the hands of Mr. Depp on
ok

December 18, 2019 in the Washington Post’s online edition and on December 19, 2019 iI.l the

Washington Post’s hardcopy edition. The op-éd in the Washington Post’s online edition’ was

accompanied by a picture of Ms. Heard on the }efd carpet at Aquaman’’s Los Angeles premiere.



M Depp’s Reputation And Cart?exl' Suffer As A Result Of Ms. Heard’s
, False And Defamatory Op-Ed

69. As a result of Ms. Heard’s| false domestic abuse allegations, Mr. Depp’s

reputation and career sustained immense damalgé.
70. -Ms. Heard, an actress herselfE {s well aware of the negative effect that false
domestic abuse allegations have on Mr, Depp’s career.
7. M Depp lost roles in movies because of the false allegations that Ms, Heard

made againsf him. When Mr. Depp was cast in films, there were public outcries for the

filmmakers to recast his roles.

72.  Mr. Depp endured the public s:cq'm caused by Ms, Heard’s false domestic abuse
allegations fc;r more than two years. But he “l'azis weathering the storm and had a successful film
release in November 2019. In fact, that movic! was still playing on screens across Virginia when
Ms. Heard revived the false domestic abuse allelgations by publishing her “Sexual Violence” op-
ed in the Washington Post.

73.  The reaction to Ms. Heard’s false and defamatory op-ed was swift and severe.

Just two days after the op-ed appeared in the Washington Post’s online edition, Disney publicly

announced that Mr. Depp would no longer bei a part of the Pirates of the Caribbean frﬁnchise.
. L
Mr. Depp’s turn as Captain Jack Sparrow in the Pirates of the Caribbean films is one of Mr.

Depp’s most iconic roles, and generated billi'orls of dollars for Disney. Nevertheless, he was
Y

denied an opportunity to reprise that role immediately on the heels of Ms. Heard’s false and
t 1

P
1
1

defamatdry op-ed.

COUNT ONE—DEFAMATION FOR STA'J:"EMENTS IN MS. HEARD’S DECEMBI:]R
18,2018 OP-ED IN THE ONLINE EDITION OF THE WASHINGTON POST -'




74.  Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each of the foregoing paragraphs as if set forth

fully herein.

75.  Ms. Heard published the “Sexval Violence” op-ed on the December 18, 2018.

The article was published to a worldwide audience on the Washington Post's website. A true

(4

and correct copy of the online edition of the ¢Sexual Violence” op-ed is attached hereto and

incorporated by reference as Exhibit A.

76.  The “Sexual Violence” op-ed contained the following false and defamatory

1

statements concernting Mr. Depp: )

e “Amber Heard; I spoke up againstisexual violence — and faced our culture’s wrath,
That has to change.”

»° “Then two years ago, I became a public figure representing domestic abuse, and I felt
the full force of our culture’s wrath for women who speak out.”

. “I had the rare vantage point of seemg, in real time, how institutions protect men
accused of abuse.” -
|

» “I write this as a woman who had to change my phone number weekly because I was
getting death threats. For months,|1!rarely left my apartment, and when I did, I was
pursued by camera drones and ph'otographers on foot, on motorcycles and in cars.
Tabloid outlets that posted picture's of me spun them in a negative light. I felt as
though 1 was on trial in the courtlof public opinion — and my life and livelihood

" depended on myriad judgments far beyond my control.”

77. - These statements are of and concerning Mr. Depp, as he is Ms. Heard’s former
husband and she publicly (and falsely) accuseri.‘l l;uim of domestic abuse in May 2016. Moreover,
Ms. Heard intended to refer to Mr. Depp in th!cs%e statements, and those who know Mr. Depp or
who read the “Sexual Violence” op-ed understlpofd these statements to be about Mr, Depp.

78.  These statements, which impl'y',that Ms. Heard was the victim of domestic

i

. A ‘|
violence at the hands of Mr. Depp, are false: . 1



a. Mr. Depp did not commit “domestic abuse™ or “sexual violence” against Ms.
| .Heard. Ms. Heard’s allegation|that Mr. Depp violently attacked her on May 21,
2016 has been refuted conclusi\fely by police, neutral third-party witnesses, and
_B7 newly obtained surveillance, camera videos.
b. Ms. Heard is not a victim of domestic violence; rather, she is a perpetrator. Ms.
Heard was arrested for domestié violence against her former domestic partner in
. 2009. Ms. Heard also committed multiple acts of domestic violence against Mr.
Depp, some of which she has confessed to under oath.

79. * The substantial danger of injury fo Mr. Depp’s reputation from Ms. Heard’s false

statements is readily apparent. Such statements would tend to so harm the reputation of another
as 1o lower him in the estimation of the community or to deter third persons from associating or
dealing with him.

80. By publishing these false statements, Ms. Heard caused harm to Mr. Depp’s

reputation.

81. At the time of publication, Ms. EHaard knew these statements were false.

82.  Ms. Heard’s false statements are defamatory per se because they impute to Mr.
Depp the commission of a crime involving moral turpitude for which Mr. Depp, if the charge

was true, could be indicted and punished. Moreover, Ms. Heard’s false statements prejudice Mr.

Depp in his profession as a film actor. Mr. Depp therefore is entitled to presumed damages.

83.  Asadirect and proximate result of these false statements by Ms. Heard, Mr, Depp
. i
has suffered damages, including, inter alia, ianL'ry to his reputation, harm to his ability to carry

on his profession, embarrassment, humiliation, and emotional distress, in an amount to be

determined at trial.
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84, Ms, Heard’s actions were malicious, willful, and wanton, and evidence a
conscioue disregard for Mr. Depp’s rights. Accordingly, punitive damages are appropriate.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests that the Court enter an award in Plaintiff's

favor and against Defendant, as follows;

(D awarding Mr, Depp compensatory damages of not less than $ 50,000,000, or in

such additional amount to be proven at trial;
(2) awarding Mr. Depp punitive ciar:rlages fo the maximum extent permitted by the
“laws of this Commonwealth, buti not less than § 350,000;

(3) awarding Mr. Depp all of his expenses and costs, including attorneys’ fees; and

€)) granting such other and furthel; relief as the Court deems appropriate.
3 | N

COUNT TWO—DEFAMATION FOR STATEMENTS IN MS. HEARD’S DECEMBER
19,2018 OP-ED IN THE PRINT EDIITION OF THE WASHINGTON POST

85.  Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges |each of the foregoing paragraphs as if set forth
L \

fully herein. b

i
]

86.  Ms. Heard published the “Sexual Viclence” op-ed in the December 19, 2018
i \
hardcopy eeii;ion of the Washington Post, which the Washington Post distributes to readers in

Virginia, across the nation, and around the ;world. A true and correct copy of the hardcopy
edition of the “Sexual Violence™ op-ed is atiached hereto and incorporated by reference as

Exhibit B, |
87.  The “Sexual onlence” op- eli contained the following false and defamatory

staternents concerning Mr. Depp:

. “Amber Heard: I spoke up agamst sexual violence — and faced our culture’s wrath.
That has to change.” |

1
]
3
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e “Then two years ago, [ became a plublic figure representing domestic abuse, and I felt

" the full force of our culture’s wrath for women who speak out.”

s “I had the rare vantage point of seeing, in real time, how institutions protect men
accused of abuse.”

e~ “I"write this as a woman who had to|change my phone number weekly because I was

getting death threats. For months, 1 rarely left my apartment, and when I did, I was

pursued by camera drones and photographers on foot, on motorcycles and in cars.

Tabloid outlets that posted plctures of me spun them in a negative light. 1 felt as

. though I was on trial in the court of public opinion — and my life and livelihood
depended on myriad judgments far, beyond my control.”

88.  These statements are of and concerning Mr. Depp, as he is Ms. Heard’s former
i
husband and she publicly (and falsely) accuse;d 11him of domestic abuse in May 2016. Moreover,

Ms. Heard intended to refer to Mr. Depp in t}:1e'se stafements, and those who know Mr. Depp or
who read the “Sexual Violence” op-ed underst’oéd these statements to be about Mr. Depp.
89,  These statements, which implly that Ms. Heard was the victim of domestic
violence at the hands of Mr. Depp, are false:
a. Mr. Depl; did not commit “dpmestic abuse” or “sexuval violence” against Ms.
‘Heard. Ms. Heard’s allegation that Mr. Depp violently attacked her on May 21,
| 2016 has been refuted concluslwely by police, neutral third-party witnesses, and

| i
87 newly obtained surveillance camera videos.

b. .Ms. Heard is not a victim of dprinestic violence; rather, she is a perpetrator. Ms.
Heard was arrested for domestic viclence against her former partner in 2009, Ms.

Heard also committed multiplelacts of domestic violence against Mr. Depp.
L

90. - The substantial danger of injuriv }o Mr. Depp’s reputation from Ms. Heard’s false
| | '
statements is readily apparent. Such staternen'tsl would tend to so harm the reputation of another

-

as to lower him in the estimation of the community or to deter third persons from associating or

dealing with him.



91.
reputation.
92. | At the time of publication, Ms.
- 93.  Ms. Heard’s false statements &

Depp the commission of a crime involving n

was true, could be indicted and punished, Moreover, Ms. Heard’s false statements prejudice Mr.

By publishing these false statements, Ms. Heard caused harm to Mr. Depp’s

Heard knew these statements were false,

re defamatory per se because they impute to Mr,

noral turpitude for which Mr. Depp, if the charge

Depp in his profession as a film actor, Mr. Depp therefore is entitled to presumed damages.

.- |
As a direct and proximate result of these false statements by Ms. Heard, Mr. Depp

94,

has suffered damages, including, inter alia,

on his profession, embarrassment, humiliatior

determined at trial.

95.

conscious disregard for Mr. Depp’s rights, Ac

injt

Ms. Heard’s actions were ma

cordingly, punitive damages are appropriate.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully reciuests that the Court enter an award in Plaintiff's

favor and against Defendant, as follows:

.- awarding Mr, Depp compensatof'y damages of not less than $ 50,000,000, or in
awarding Mr. Depp punitive damages to the rnaxunum extent permitted by the

awarding Mr, Depp all of his expenses and costs, including attorneys’ fees; and

(0
such additional amount to be proven at trial;
@
" laws of this Commonwealth, but not less than $ 350 000
3
@

L |
COUNT THREE—DEFAMATION FOR

granting such other and furthexl‘ rIeIief as the Court deems appropriate.

STATEMENTS IN MS. HEARD’S OP-ED

WHICH HEARD REPUBLISHED WHEN SHE TWEETED A LINK

TO THE OP-ED ON

DECEMBER 19, 2018

ury to his reputation, harm to his ability to carry

1, and emotional distress, in an amount to be

licious, willful, and wanton, and evidence a



96.  Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each of the foregoing paragraphs as if set forth

fully herein.

97.  Ms. Heard published the “Sele!al Violence” op-ed in the December 18, 2018

online ediiioo of the Washington Post. The fl'oilowing day, Ms. Heard tweeted a link fo the op-
i 1

ed. A true and correct copy of Ms, Heard’s tweet of the link to the “Sexual Violence” op-ed is
attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Exhibit C.

' s
98,  The “Sexual Violence” op-ed |contained the following false and defamatory

statements concerning Mr. Depp:

e “Amber Heard: 1 spoke up against sexual violence — and faced our culture’s wrath.
That has to change.”

a
1

|
o “Then two years ago, I became a ;Iaublic figure representing domestic abuse, and I felt
the full force of our culture's wrath for women who speak out.”

e “T"had the rare vantage point of seeing, in real time, how institutions protect men
accused of abuse.” b '

o “T write this as a woman who had|tq change my phone number weekly because I was
getting death threats. For months, I rarely left my apartment, and when I did, I was

. pursued by camera drones and photographers on foot, on motorcycles and in cars.
Tabloid outlets that posted pictures of me spun them in a negative light. T felt as
though I was on trial in the court :of public opinion — and my life and livelihood

~ depended on myriad judgments far li)eyond my control.”

99. These statements are of and conceming Mr. Depp, as he is Ms. Heard’s former

husband and she publicly (and falsely) accused him of domestic abuse in May 2016, Moreover

Ms. Heard intended to refer to Mr. Depp in these statements, and those who know Mr. Depp or
l

who read the “Sexual Violence” op-ed understood these statements to be about Mr. Depp.

I
100. These statements, which imply that Ms. Heard was the victim of domestic

M

violence at the hands of Mr. Depp, are false:

™
~



~a. Mr, Depp did not commit “domestic abuse” or “sexual violence” against Ms.
" 'Heard. Ms. Heard’s allegation' that Mr. Depp violently attacked her on May 21,
2016 has been refuted conclu.sivcl)'/ by police,. multiple, neutral third-party
witnesses, and 87 newly obtainlegi surveillance camera videos.

b. -Ms. Heard is not a victim of qoxli1estic violence; rather, she is a perpetrator. Ms.
Heard was arrested for domest:ic{viol_ence against her former partner in 2009. Ms,

Heard also committed mu]tiple' a!cts of domestic violence against Mr. Depp.
10‘1. | The substantial danger of injuxl'y to Mr. Depp’s reputation from Ms. Heard’s false
statements is readily apparent. Such statemeilts would tend to so harm the reputation of another

as to lower him in the estimation of the comr:mtmity or to deter third persons from associating or

dealing with him.

102, By publishing these false statements, Ms. Heard caused harm to Mr, Depp’s

reputation. - |
/ |
103. At the time of publication, Ms. Heard knew these statements were false.
I
: _ 1
104. Ms. Heard’s false statements 'arp defamatory per se because they impute to Mr.

Depp the commission of a crime involving m&ral turpitude for which Mr. Depp, if the charge
was true, could be indicted and punished. Moreover, Ms. Heard’s false statements prejudice Mr.

Depp in his profession as a film actor. Mr, Depp therefore is entitled to presumed damages.
|

105.  As a direct and proximate resullt of these false statements by Ms. Heard, Mr. Depp

has suffered damages, including, inter alia, injury to his reputaﬁon, harm to his ability to'carry
. f

on his profession, embarrassment, humiliation, and emotional distress, in an amount to be

i
|
l
i
i
1
1
)
i
]
|

determined at trial.
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106. Ms. Heard’s actions were malicious, willful, and wanton, and evidence a

conscious disregard for Mr. Depp’s rights. Acc?rdingly, punitive damages are appropriate.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests that the Court enter an award in Plaintiff’s
favor, and against Defendant, as follows: | |

(1) - awarding Mr. Depp compensatory damages of not less than $50,000,000, or in

such additional amount to be plro;ven at trial;
|

(ﬁ) awarding Mr. Depp punitive |da'mages; to the maximum extent permitted by the
" laws of this Commonwealth, blutJ no less than $350,000;

(3)  awarding Mr. Depp all expensies:and costs, including attorneys’ fees; and
' P

(4)  such other and further relief a§ the Court deems appropriate.
.- |

JURY TRIAL DEMAND
: I

Plaintiff John C. Depp, II hereby dem]an'ds a jury trial on all issues so triable.

Dated:; March 1, 2019 .
L

Brittany Whitesell Biles (pro hac vice application forthcoming) .
STEIN MITCHELL BEATO & MISSNER LLP ‘
901 Fifteenth Street, N.W, ;

Suite 700~ °

Washington, D,C. 20005
Telephone: (202) 601-1602
Facsimile: (202) 296-8312
Email: bbiles@steinmitchell.com

29



Facsimile: (202) 296-8312
Email: bbiles@steinmitchell.com

Adam R, Waldman

THE ENDEAVOR LAW FIRM, P.C.
1775 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W,, Suite 350 C
Washington, DC 20006

E
|
i
E
enjamin G. Chew (VSB # 29113) ‘

'
Elliot . Weingarten (pro hac vice application forthcoming)
BROWN RUDNICK LLP !
601 Thirteenth Street, N.W. i
Washington, D.C. 20005
Telephone: (202) 536-1700
Facsimile: (202) 536-1701

Email: bchew(@brownrudnick.com
Counsel for Plaintiff John C. Depp, I
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- about the ship, but because their own fates depend on the enterprise.

Amber Heard is an actress and ambassador on women'’s rights at the American Civil Liberties Union.

I was exposed to abuse at a very yonng age. I knew certain things early on, without ever having to be told. I
knew that men have the power — physically, socially and financially — and that a lot of institutions support
that arrangement. I kmew this long before I had the words to articulate it, and I bet you learned it young, too.

Like many women, I had been harassed and sexually assaulted by the time I was of college age. Bt I kept
quiet — I did st expect filing complaints to bring justice. And I didn't see myself as a vicHm.

‘Then two years ago, I became a public figure representing domestic abuse, and I felt the full force of our
culture’s wrath for wormmen who speak out.

Friends and advisers told me I would never again work ag an actress — that I would be blacklisted. A movie I
was attached to recast my role. I had just shot a two-year campaign as the face of a global fashion brand, and
the company dropped me. Questions arose as to whether I would be able to keep my role of Mera in the

movies “Justiee League™ and “Aquaman.”

I had the rare vantage point of seeing, in real time, how institutions protect men accused of abuse.

A letter to |
Christine Blasey Fﬂ |

From Connie Chung

Liten to beaadens jrrafict Connbo Chung read a totter to Crutsting Blasey Ford, scknaededging puttety forthe first tima that sho was sexpaly sbused.
(Ka1e Woodsama. Danlelia Kunitr/The Washington Post)

Imagine a powerful man as a ship, like the Titanic. That ship is a huge enterprise. Whea it strikes an iceberg,
there are a lot of people on board desperate to patch up holes — not because they believe in or even care
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In recent years, the #MeToo movement has taught us about how power like this warks, not justin
Rollywood but in all kinds of Institutions — workplaces, places of worship or simply in particutar
communities. In every walk of life, women are confronting these men who are buoyed by social, economic
and cultural power. And these institutions are beginning to change.

We are in a transformative political moment. The president of our country has been accused by more than a
dozen women of sexual misconduet, including assault and harassment. Outrage over his statements and
behavior has energized a female-led opposition. #MeToo started a conversation about just how profoundly
sexual violence affects women in every area of our lives. And last month, more women were elected to
Congress than ever in our history, with a mendate to take women's issues seriously. Women's rage and
determination to_end sexual violence are turning into a political force. i
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We bave an opening now to bolster and bulld institutions protective of women. For starters, Congress can
reauthorize and strengthen the Violence Against Women Act. First passed in 1994, the act isone of the most
effective pieces of Jegislation enacted to fight domestic violence and sexual assauilt. It creates support
systems for people who report abuse, and provides funding for rape crisis centers, legal assistance programs
and other eritical services. It improves responses hy law enforcement, and it prohibits diserimination against
LGPBTQ survivors. Funding for the act expired in September and has only been temporarily extended.
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-

We should continue to fight sexual assault on college campuses, while simultaneously insisting on fair
processes for adjudicating complaints. Last month, Education Secretary Betsy DeVaos proposed changes to
Title IX rules governing the treatment of sexual harassment and assault in schoals, While some changes
would make the process for handling complaints more fair, others would weaken protections for sexual
assault survivors, For example, the new rules would require schools to investiéute only the most extreme
complaints, and then only when they are made to designated officials, Women on campuses already have
trouble coming forward about sexual violence — why wonld we allow institutions to scale back supports?

Iwrite this as o woman whe had to change my plione number weekly because I was getting death threats,
For mouths, I rarely left my apartment, and when [ did, I was pursued by camera drones and photographers
on foot, on motorcycles and in cars. Tabloid outlets that posted pictures of me spun them in a negative light.

I felt as though [ was on trial in the court of public opinion — and my life and livelihood depended on myriad

judgments far beyond my control.

I want to ensure that women who come forward to talk about violenee receive more support. We are electing
representatives who know how deeply we care about these issues. We ean work together to demand changes
to laws and rules and social norms — and to right the imbalances that have shaped our Hves,
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Read more: -

The Post's View: What Betsy DeVos's new Title IX changes get right — and wrong,

Betsy DeVos: It's time we balance the seales of justice in our schools

Janet Napolitano: Don't let the Trump administration undermine Title IX

Mili Mitra: The most horrifying part of the Dartmouth sexual harassment case
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/2019 Amber Heard on Twiter; "Teday | published this op-ed in the Washington Post about the women who are channeling their rage about viole...
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- Amber Heard @ - g
i/ @realamberheard :

Today I published this op-ed in the

' - Washington Post about the women who

~are channeling thelr rage about violence
and lnequallty into ipolitical strength

| despite the price of coming forward.

From college campuses to Congress,

~we're balancing the scales.

1
1

i
i

Opinion | Amber Heard: | spoke up against sexual violence — and fa...

We have an opening now to bolster and build institutions protective of
women. Let's not igriore it. |
-washingtonpost.com i
. i
:
1

1:28 PM - 19 Dec 2018

| 1,292 Retweets 3,556Likes &5 -8 @D BSOS

QO 128 T3 13K 3.6K

Amber Heard @ @realamberheard - 19 Dec 2018 v

’h, I'm honored to announce my role as an @ACLU ambassador on women's rights.

https:iitwittar.com/realamberheard/status/10755032793232424957lang=en
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Fairfax Pi
Ciroui

reuit Court
Court

i
Receipt{ NP' 827293
Receipt Date: 03/01/2019 12:49 PM

Received of; Benjamin G Chew, ’ ' § 346.00
. | N
!
Three Hundred Forly Six and 00/100 I
John C Depp Il vs, Amber Laura Heard ' '
Filer{s): Depp, John C II b
Case Amount
CL-2019-0002911 - .
Complaint ($500,000.01 and above) b 346,00
E Total: 346.00

Payment Method: Check (Number: 3472)

Amount Tendered: 346.00
Overage: 0.00
Change Due: ) 0.00

Balance due court: $ 0.00
Next fine/fee due dale;
| Next restitution due date:

| John T. Frey, Clerk of Circuit Court

By:

Deputy Clerk
Clerk: ACASTS

Page 1 of 1

03/01/2018 12:49PM User ID: Clerk: ACASTS




g V\ WOODS ROGERS

ATTORNEYS AT LAW
(540) 983-7540

brottenborn@woodsrogers.com

: -
November 5, 2019 o o C—_—i
'r“(,_ - .rg
2 2 o7
=< LT N
BZZ o D
VIA U.S. MAIL 2 fites,
*em Z 9
John T. Frey, Clerk ; _ g;% = :;3
Fairfax County Circuit Court 2T e =
4110 Chain Bridge Road o
Fairfax, Virginia 22030
Re:

John C. Depp, II v. Amber Laura Heard; Fairfax County Circuit Court Case
No. CL2019-0002911
Dear Mr. Frey,

In the above-referenced matter, enclosed for filing please find two copies of Defendant’s
Certificate of Counsel and corresponding subpoenas issued pursuant to Virginia Code Section

8.01-412.10 and in section 3119 of New York s Ctivil Practice Law and Rules (31 C.P.L.R. §
3119) (collectively, “Acts”). The enclosed Subpoena Duces Tecum and Subpoena Ad
Testificandum Pursuant to New York’s C.P.L.. lli § 3119 and Virginia Subpoena/Subpoena Duces
Tecum to Person Under Foreign Subpoena have been issued in accordance with both Acts and
the reciprocal privileges included therein I

The enclosed documents will be served by private process server and affidavits of service

will be filed as necessary. Please file these documents with the Court’s papers in this case and
return a file-stamped copy of the same in the enclosed return envelope.

Thank you for your assistance and please do not hesitate to call with any questions or
concerns.

Very trhly yours,

WOODS ROGERS PLC

Ben Rottenborn
JBR:lms

{2644130-1, 121024-00001-01}

P.O. Box 14125, Roancke, Virginia 24038-4]125
10 8. Jefferson Street, Suite 1400, Roancke VA 24011
P (540) 983-7600 » F (540) 983-7711

www.,woodsrogers.com

!
Charlottesville o Lynchburg » Richmond e Roanoke
i {



Fairfax Pircuit Court
Cilrc‘uit Court
Receipt No. 864539
Receipt Date:} 1‘1/07/2019 11:45 AM

|

Received of: Woods Rogers PLC, : 7.00
Seven and 00/100
John C Depp Il vs. Amber Laura Heard
Filer(s): Heard, Amber Laura
Cass Amount
CL-2019-0002911
Copy - Certified 2.00
Subpoena Duces Tecum Clerks Fee 5.00
Total: 7.00
Balance due court: $ 0.00

Next fineffee due date:
Next restitution due date:

Check (Num: 63714, Exp: xx/xx)

Amount Tendered: 7.00
Overage: 0.00
Change Due: 0.00

John T. Frey, Clerk of Circuit Court

By:

Deputy Clerk
Clerk: TWOODE

Page 1 of 1 11/07/2019 11:45 AM User ID: Clerk: TWOODE






